ARKANSAS

STATE BOARD OF REGISTRATION for PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

Act 202 of 1925
Regulating the Practice of Professional Engineering

RULES AND BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD

ROSTER OF REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS TO JUNE 1, 1926

INSTRUCTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
FOR APPLICANTS



OFFICIAL SEAL OF BOARD

No Certificates or Annual Renewal Cards are Valid Without The Official Seal of the Board

ARKANSAS

STATE BOARD OF REGISTRATION for PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

Act 202 of 1925

Regulating the Practice of Professional Engineering

Approved March 21, 1925

RULES AND BY-LAWS OF THE BOARD

ROSTER OF REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS TO JUNE 1, 1926

INSTRUCTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS FOR APPLICANTS

INDEX

		Pa	ge
Title Page			1
Index			13
Board Personnel			3
Foreword			
Instructions and Requirements for			
Instructions to obtain Personal Bu			
Reciprocal Registration with other	State Boards		7
Rules and By-laws of the Board			8
Opinion of Attorney General			12
Reprint of Registration Act			14
Roster of Professional Engineers			18

The Board will appreciate being advised through the Secretary any corrections that should be made in this pamphlet.

STATE BOARD OF REGISTRATION for PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

ROY E. WARDEN		Presiden t
	Little Rock	
JAS. R. RHYNE		Vice-President
	Corning	
W. N. GLADSON		Member
	Fayetteville	
F. J. HERRING		Member
	Jonesboro	
J. H. RICE		Member
	Little Rock	

Address all communications to the Secretary, 458 State Capitol Building, Little Rock, Ark.

458 State Capitol Bldg., Little Rock

Sec'y-Treasurer

M. Z. BAIR

FOREWORD

Following the example of a long list of progressive-minded states, Arkansas has enacted a law to regulate the practice of professional engineering, "in order to safeguard life, health and property." Its object in brief is to require that hereafter no person, with certain reasonable exceptions, shall be permitted to practice engineering in this State without first submitting satisfactory evidence that he is properly qualified, morally and technically, to so practice.

The benefits and value of such a law from the standpoint of the public good are obvious. Its aim is to maintain the standard of the profession, and if the law is conscientiously and intelligently administered, it will doubtless

accomplish much.

In the light of the rapid development of the State, the ever-increasing magnitude of engineering undertakings and the vast sums of money expended in their realization, such protection as the Registration Law provides is essential, not only for the public, but for the legitimate and bona fide engineer as well.

All applicants for registration will receive the careful and conscientious consideration of the Registration Board, without fear or favor, and certificates will be issued only to engineers whose character and standing is unquestioned. Thus the reputable and competent engineer will be protected against spurious competition and the public will be assured of the highest competence.

The State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers is fully cognizant of the heavy responsibilities that rest upon it as the agency to which the administration of the law has been entrusted; and every member is firmly disposed to carry out to the utmost the high motives of the Act.

The active co-operation and respect of the State, County, Municipal and Sub-divisional Authorities as well as the Engineer, is urged in order that the law will reflect credit to the State and the Engineering Profession.

There are two hundred and nineteen (219) bona fide Registered Professional Engineers on record with the Board at the time this roster pamphlet goes to press, which proves unquestionable co-operation in the profession. Your Board has voted to print information of this character annually for your information and others who are entitled to know.

Since the administration of the Law must be carried on without legislative appropriation, the only income available to the Board for this purpose is the money derived from registration and renewal fees. The Board has sought at all times to keep the registration and renewal fees at the lowest possible amount consistent with the proper administration of the law. The Board, therefore, fixed the annual renewal fee for 1927 at Five (\$5.00) Dollars, which together with the few additional registration fees will take care of the necessary expense.

R. E. WARDEN, President of the Board

Little Rock, Arkansas, June 1, 1926.

Instructions and Requirements for all Engineers Making Application for Registration to Practice Professional Engineering

Applicants for registration must submit satisfactory evidence to the Board that he is more than twenty-one years of age, of good moral character and qualified to design and supervise the construction of engineering work of importance.

Engineering experience gained by the applicant prior to his reaching the age of eighteen years shall not be counted as a part of his professional experience.

Professional experience shall be considered as beginning when the candidate has entered upon a position in professional engineering work which requires original thought and responsibility. For example:

- (a) In the field experience shall begin to count when the applicant reaches a position of responsibility equivalent to that of actual transitman.
- (b) In the shop or laboratory experience shall begin to count only after apprenticeship, foremanship, inspectorship, or other subordinate positions unless the work done specifically shows that the applicant possesses originality of design and has had responsibility in his subordinate positions.
- (c) In the office or drafting room experience shall begin to count when the applicant ceases to do merely tracing, lettering, or purely mechanical work requiring for its performance merely manual dexterity, and enters a position of responsibility where he begins actual design.
- (d) Experience in the teaching of engineering shall begin to count when the applicant is a full-time instructor in engineering in an engineering school of recognized standing and each year of teaching shall be considered equivalent to one year of practice.

The applicant shall have had four years of experience in professional engineering, and in addition shall show that he is qualified to design as well as to direct engineering operations, as evidence of qualification for registration, and his experience record shall show progressive advancement in the character of the work performed.

Each case shall be considered on its merits, and the experience record must be given in such complete detail that the Board of Examiners can determine the character of work performed by the applicant.

Graduation from an Engineering School of recognized standing shall be accepted as the equivalent of two years of such practice. An Engineering School of recognized standing shall be one which requires the equivalent of a high school or preparatory school diploma as an entrance requirement and demands the equivalent of a four years' course in Engineering for graduation.

All applications must be made out on regular form P. E. 1 which will be furnished by the Secretary upon request.

A fee of fifteen (\$15.00) dollars must accompany each application when submitted and an additional fee of ten (\$10.00) dollars will be required of all successful applicants for his certificate upon advice from the Secretary. This covers fee for the calendar year in which you first register. See Sections 8, 9 and 10 of the Act.

At least two examinations will be held by the Board each year; whether oral or written will be dependent upon the applicant's education and experience in handling professional engineering work of importance. The applicant when filling out his application should exercise the utmost care in answering correctly and accurately all questions on the application blank under oath. Each applicant will be advised of the Board's action prior to the following dates for the next examination.

Annual renewal fee of Five (\$5.00) Dollars for all certificates is due and payable on or before December 31st each year for the ensuing year. Annual registration renewal cards will be furnished by the Secretary promptly upon receipt of the renewal fee. See Section 14 of the Act.

OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Section 16 of the Act permits each Registered Professional Engineer in the State of Arkansas to use an official professional seal consisting of two concentric circles. In the outer circle will appear the personal name of the registrant the words "State of Arkansas." In the inner circle will appear the wording "Registered Professional Engineer No......." The number will be the number of your registration certificate. Below this seal, when stamped on reports, plans, specifications, etc., must appear the wording "Registration Certificate Expires December 31, 19......" This can be written in ink or by rubber stamp. All certificates expire December 31st each year, and if the rubber stamp is used all that is necessary is for the registrant to supply the year. To obtain a seal write the Secretary giving him the name you wish to appear upon the seal and the number of your registration certificate. If you desire this seal and rubber stamp, they will be ordered for you by the Secretary when requested at your expense.



Registration Certificate Expires Dea 31, 19___

Seal adopted by the Board

Reciprocal Registration with other State Boards

The Arkansas State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers is a member of the Council of State Boards of Engineering Examiners consisting of the states:

> ARKANSAS ARIZONA COLORADO FLORIDA INDIANA IOWA LOUISIANA MICHIGAN

MINNESOTA NORTH CAROLINA OREGON SOUTH CAROLINA SOUTH DAKOTA TENNESSEE VIRGINIA WEST VIRGINIA

WYOMING

All Engineers registered with the Arkansas State Board are entitled to registration with the National Council providing such applicants meet the requirements of the Council. The Arkansas Board will arrange for this registration without charge, but only to those who have had ten years experience in professional engineering, and in addition shall show that they are qualified to design as well as to direct engineering operations, as evidence of qualification for reciprocal registration, and their experience record shall show progressive advancement in the character of the work performed.

Engineers who can meet all requirements of the National Council will be furnished a reciprocal registration card which will entitle them to registration in any state where the Board of that state is a member of the Council, without examination and upon compliance with the requirements of the Board they choose to become registered. The Secretary will furnish them with special application blanks upon request.

BY-LAWS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD

Section 1

1. Name

The name of this Board shall be "STATE BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS."

2. Officers

The officers of the Board shall be, President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The latter officers may be held by the same person, who may or may not be a member of the Board.

3. Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at 10 A. M. on the first Saturday of January and July each year. Special meetings may be called from time to time by the President when in his opinion it is necessary. Due notice of all meetings shall be given to the members by the Secretary.

4. Quorum

Three members of the Board shall at all times constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

5. Term of Office

At the regular meeting in July of each year the Board shall elect a President, Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, who shall hold office until the following July, or until such times as their successors shall have been elected and the office accepted.

6. Seal

The Seal of the Board shall be of two concentric circles approximately 2 inches and 1½ inches in diameter respectively between which shall be inscribed "STATE BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS." Inside the smaller circle shall be the great seal of the State of Arkansas.

7. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Board shall be from July 1st until June 30th of the succeeding year.

Section 2. Duties of Officers

1. President

The president shall, when present, preside at all meetings, shall appoint all committees, and shall sign all certificates and other official documents. He shall call the Board together when, in his opinion, business necessitates and shall otherwise perform all duties pertaining to the office of President.

2. Vice President

The Vice President shall in the absence of the President preside at all meetings and perform all the duties of the President, and he shall at such times possess all the powers of the President.

3. Secretary

The Secretary shall receive and receipt for all fees and other moneys and transmit them to the Treasurer. He shall sign all certificates and other official documents of the Board. He shall be responsible for the keeping of proper records of all the business transacted by the Board and for the care and the filing of all applications, correspondence and other records which from time to time may accumulate.

4. Treasurer

The Treasurer shall receive from the Secretary all moneys and give his receipt therefor and shall keep and preserve a proper record of the receipts and disbursements of the same.

He shall be required to give bond in a sum to be determined by the Board.

Section 3. Procedure

1. Order of Business

- 1. Reading of Minutes of last meeting.
- 2. Reports of Committees.
- 3. Communications.
- 4. Reading and considering applications.
- 5. Unfinished business.
- 6. New business.
- 7. Examinations.
- 8. Election of Officers
- 9. Adjournment.

2. Rules of Order

Roberts' Rules of Order shall govern the procedure of the Board, except as may otherwise be provided by the By-laws and not subversive to the requirements of the Act.

3. Notice

Due notice of each regular or call meeting of the Board shall be mailed to each member at his last known address by the Secretary, and said mailing shall be deemed full and proper notice thereof.

4. Amendments

Notice of proposed amendments to the by-laws must be presented in writing at a regular meeting and may be voted on at that meeting, three affirmative votes being necessary to pass an amendment.

RULES OF THE BOARD

1. Form of Application

All applications for registration shall be made on printed forms provided by the Board. No application made otherwise than on such forms will be accepted for filing by the Board. In the event the printed forms of the Board do not contain sufficient space for evidence to be submitted, the applicant may attach sheets to said form to any extent desired. Such attached sheets should be of the same size as, and securely attached to, the printed forms.

2. Issuing of Certificates

If after examining the evidence as submitted, or such other evidence as the Board may require or procure, the Board is satisfied that the applicant possesses the qualifications required by the Act; in such case the applicant shall be notified, and the Board shall forthwith cause applicant to be registered and shall issue a certificate of registration duly executed as is required by the Act, and shall also issue a card to the applicant certifying to such registration. This card shall be reissued each year upon payment of the renewal fees as is provided in Section 14 of the Act.

All certificates expire on the 31st day of December following their issue or renewal.

3. References

Upon the receipt of each application regularly made, the Secretary shall prepare a digest of the information contained therein and at convenient intervals shall mail same to each and every member of the Board, who shall as promptly as possible acquaint the Secretary with any information known to him concerning the applicant's statements. Such information shall be attached to the application by the Secretary for use by the Board in considering the application. The Secretary by means of blanks specially prepared for this purpose will use due diligence in inquiring concerning the truthfulness of the applicant's statements from the references given, or by such other means as the Board may direct.

4. Rejections

In case of the rejection of an application, for any reason, the applicant shall be so notified and at the same time invited to submit additional evidence that he is entitled to have his case reconsidered or to be re-admitted to examination. A rejected applicant shall upon request be fully informed as to the reason for the rejection of his application, and he may thereafter file with the Board any reason he desires, to support a claim for reconsideration or re-examination. It will be the policy of the Board to give rejected applicants every reasonable opportunity to support claims for reconsideration and to consider such evidence as may have been omitted or overlooked on the original application or examination.

5. Registration Numbers

There will be issued by the Board consecutively in the order in which the applicants make application to and qualify before the Board. No discrimination or preference will be permitted in issuing registration numbers to applicants.

6. Seals

The Secretary may supply, at cost to be fixed, each registrant with a seal as set forth in Section 16 of the Act. He shall have recorded in the office of the Secretary of State all certificates issued and shall collect the fee therefor in advance from the registrant.

7. Explanation of Terms

To supervise means the direction of the design or construction of work where skill and judgment must be used in meeting unforeseen conditions. That one is qualified to "design and supervise" can only be proved by performance. Hence in interpreting the provisions of the Act "to design and supervise" must be a matter of judgment based on the evidence submitted.

Wherever the Board is in doubt regarding the above, the practice will be to give the State the benefit of the doubt.

Each registrant is charged with the duty of keeping the Secretary informed of any change in address.



STATE OF ARKANSAS OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

July 21, 1925

Mr. R. E. Warden, President State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers, Little Rock, Arkansas.

Dear Mr. Warden:

I note with satisfaction that pursuant to the provisions of Act 202 of the recent General Assembly, the Board of Registration for Professional Engineers has completed its organization.

Thus Arkansas takes her place in that group of progressive States seeking to recognize properly your profession and to protect the public by requiring certain qualifications of those who seek to practice engineering. This, in my opinion, is a great step forward. The procedure, including the appointment of the Board and the election of officers, has apparently been in strict compliance with the law, and it is our opinion that you may now proceed to enforce the provisions of the Act.

Section 16 protects the profession and the public by providing that a seal may be used by registrants upon plans, specifications, plats and reports. Any person unlawfully using the seal shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not less than Ten Dollars nor more than One Hundred Dollars.

Section 19 provides that any person practicing or offering to practice professional engineering without a proper certificate shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not less than Ten Dollars nor more than Two Hundred Dollars, or by imprisonment.

We are sure you will find the prosecuting attorneys of the State anxious to co-operate with you in enforcing these provisions. The constitutionality of this Act should not be questioned. While the courts will always seek to protect one in the pursuit of a calling where constitutional rights are involved, it must be recognized that the State may protect the public from ignorance and incompetence in certain professions. We quote the following language from the case of People vs. Evans, 247 Ill. 547:

"In the exercise of the police power of the State the legislature may prescribe regulations for securing the admission of qualified persons to all callings demanding special knowledge, experience and skill."

Assuring you that this office will be glad to be of service at any time, I am

Respectfully yours, BROOKS HAYS

Assistant Attorney General.

INDEX

TO ACT REGULATING THE PRACTICE OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING

Section

- Registration required 1.
- 2. Exceptions.
- 3. Board of Registration created.
- 4. Powers.
- 5. Organization.
- 6. Fees determined, Secretary and Treasurer of Board.
- 7. Salaries and expenses, payment of.
- 8. Registration, application.
- 9. Examinations.
- 10. Fees, certificate temporary permits.
- Registration without examination until January 1, 1926. 11.
- 12. Reciprocation with other States.
- 13. Suspension, revocation, appeals.
- 14. Annual renewal fees.
- 15. Legal presumption, certificate.
- 16. Registrant's Seal, penalty for misuse.
- 17. Effect on Corporations.
- 18. Exemptions.
- 19.
- Failure to register, penalty. Invalid by separate part only. 20.
- 21. Repealing Clause.

ACT NUMBER 202

AN ACT TO REGULATE THE PRACTICE OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Arkansas.

Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Arkansas:

Section 1. In order to safeguard life, health, and property, any person practicing or offering to practic as a professional engineer in this State, shall hereafter be required to submit evidence that he is qualified so to practice, and shall be registered as hereinafter provided, and from and after twelve months after this Act becomes effective, it shall be unlawful for any person to practice or offer to practice, as a professional engineer in this State, unless such person has been duly registered, or specifically exempted as required by the provisions of this Act.

Section 2. Nothing in this Act shall be construed as requiring registration for the purpose of practicing professional engineering, by an individual, firm, or corporation on or in connection with property owned or leased by said individual, firm or corporation, unless the same involves the public health or safety, or the health or safety of employees of said individual, firm or corporation, provided however, the person so practicing shall not represent himself as, or use the title of registered professional engineer unless such

person is qualified by registration under this Act.

Section 3. There is hereby created a State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers, hereinafter called the "Board" consisting of five members to be appointed by the Governor within ninety days after the passage of this Act. Of the members of the Board first appointed hereunder, two shall hold office for a term of two years, two shall hold office for a term of three years, and one shall hold office for a term of four years, each term of office ending the first day of July. Upon the expiration of such terms, the term of office of each member thereafter appointed shall be for four years. Each member shall hold office until his successor shall be duly appointed and qualified. The Governor may remove any member of the board for misconduct, incompetency or neglect of duty. Vacancies on the Board, however created, shall be filled by the Governor for the unexpired term. Each member of the Board shall be a citizen of the United States and a professional engineer of at least ten years active experience, and of good standing in his profession, and shall be at least thirty-five (35) years of age, and shall have been a resident of this State for at least three years immediately preceding his appointment. Each member of said board, except the members first appointed hereunder, shall also be registered as a professional engineer at the time of his appointment. Each member of the Board shall serve without compensation, except that he shall be repaid his actual necessary expenses incident to the performance of his duties under this Act.

Section 4. Each member of the Board first appointed shall receive a certificate of registration from the Governor without being required to pay any fee therefor. The board shall have the power to compel the attendance of witnesses, and any member may administer oaths and may take testimony and proof concerning all matters within the Board's jurisdiction. The Board shall adopt and have an official seal which shall be affixed to all certi-

ficates of registration.

Section 5. The Board shall hold a meeting within thirty days after its members are first appointed, and shall organize by electing one of its members as president, and one as vice president, and shall within sixty days after its first meeting adopt such regulations and by-laws not inconsistent with law, as may be required to enable it to perform the duties and to transact the business required to carry out the provisions of this Act. Thereafter said Board shall hold at least two regular meetings each year and shall elect annually from its members a president and a vice president. The Board

shall appoint a secretary and a treasurer who may or may not be members of the Board, and who shall hold office during its pleasure. The same person may be appointed to fill both offices of secretary and treasurer if the Board so elects.

Section 6. The Board shall determine the amount of each fee required by this Act, within the limit prescribed by the Act. All fees for the examination and registration of the Professional Engineers hereunder shall be paid to the Treasurer of the Board, who shall issue receipts therefor, and all such fees shall be deposited by said Treasurer to the credit of the "Treasurer of the State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers" in a depository to be designated by the Board. The Secretary and the Treasurer shall each make a good and sufficient bond unto the State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers for the faithful performance of his duties as such officer and for the proper accounting for all money so handled, in such sum and with such surety as the Board shall deem proper. In case the same person is appointed to both of these offices, only one such bond shall be required.

Section 7. The Board shall fix the salaries of the secretary and the treasurer, and may employ and fix the salaries of such clerks, stenographers or other agents as may be necessary for the transaction of its duties. All salaries of appointees and employees of said Board, and all other expenses, proper and necessary in the opinion of the Board, for the discharge of its duties and the enforcement of this law, shall be paid out of the funds by the Treasurer as herein provided. The payments shall be by voucher checks issued by the treasurer in accordance with allowances approved by the president of the Board, and in compliance with the general regulations of the Board covering expenditures of its funds.

Section 8. Application for registration shall be made to the Board on its prescribed form, accompanied by a fee not to exceed fifteen (\$15) dollars, the said fee to be retained by the Board. The applicant shall submit satisfactory evidence that he (a) is more than twenty-one years of age; (b) is of good character; (c) has had four years active experience as an engineer in one or more branches of the profession, graduation from an engineering school of recognized standing being considered as equivalent to two years of such experience; (d) is qualified to design and supervise the construction of engineering work of importance.

Section 9. Examinations of applicants for registration shall be held [at least twice a year at such times and places within the State and in such manner as the Board shall determine.

Section 10. Any applicant who has passed the examination prescribed by the Board in a manner satisfactory to a majority of the Board, upon payment of an additional fee, not to exceed ten dollars, shall have issued to him a certificate of registration signed by the president and the secretary of the Board under seal of the Board, authorizing him to practice as a professional engineer, any applicant may in the discretion of the board, be issued a temporary permit to practice until his application has been finally acted upon by the Board. Such temporary permit must be signed by both the president and the secretary of the board, and shall not be valid after final action by the board upon the application.

Section 11. At any time after this act becomes effective, and before the first of January, 1926, certificates of registration may be issued without examination. Any person who within that time shall submit to the board satisfactory evidence that he is of good moral character, and has been a resident of Arkansas and engaged in the practice of professional engineering for at least one year immediately preceding the date upon which this Act becomes effective, shall be entitled to have issued to him such a certificate upon the payment of a fee not to exceed twenty-five dollars, but no certificate shall be issued without examination after the thirty-first day of December, 1925.

Section 12. The Board is hereby empowered to arrange for reciprocal registration of professional engineers from other States, territories, and countries to practice in this State under terms mutually agreed upon. The secretary of the Board upon the presentation to him by any person, of satisfactory evidence that holds a reciprocal registration issued to such person by proper authorities in any such state, territory, or country, shall upon the receipt of a fee not to exceed ten (\$10.00) dollars issue to such person a certificate of registration under this Act.

Section 13. The Board shall have the power to suspend or revoke the certificate of registration of any person registered hereunder who is found guilty of any fraud or deceit in his practice or in securing a certificate of registration, or of gross negligence, incompetence, or misconduct in the practice of professional engineering. Proceedings for revocation of a certificate of registration shall be begun by filing with the secretary of the board charges against the accused. Such charges shall be in writing and sworn to by the complainant. The Board unless it deems the charges trivial or unfounded, shall designate a time, not later than three months from date of filing the charges, and a place for hearing. A copy of the charge together with a notice of the time and place of hearing shall be served on the accused at least twenty days before the date fixed for hearing. The accused shall have the right to appear personally or by counsel, to cross-examine witnesses and to produce evidence and witnesses in his defense. If after said hearing, fourfifths of the members of the Board vote in favor of finding the accused guilty of any fraud or deceit in his practice or in obtaining a certificate of registration, or of gross negligence, incompetence or misconduct in the practice of professional engineering, the Board shall revoke the certificate of registration of the accused. Any person whose certificate of registration shall have been so revoked by the board, may within three months from the date of the final order by the Board, appeal therefrom to the Circuit Court.

Section 14. Every professional engineer registered under this Act who desires to continue the practice of his profession, shall annually pay a fee not to exceed fifteen (\$15.00) dollars on or before a date to be fixed by the Board, for which fee a renewal certificate of registration for the current year shall be issued. Certificates of registration revoked for failure to pay renewal fee may be reissued under rules and regulations prescribed by the Board.

Section 15. An unrevoked or unexpired certificate of registration issued as provided in this Act shall be presumptive evidence in all courts and places that the person named therein is legally registered.

Section 16. Each registrant hereunder may, after registration, obtain a seal of the design authorized by the Board, bearing the registrant's name and legend "Registered Professional Engineer." Plans, specifications, plats, and reports issued by a registrant may be stamped with the said seal during the life of the registrant's certificate, but it shall be unlawful to stamp or seal any document with said seal after the certificate of the registrant named thereon has expired or has been revoked unless said certificate shall have been renewed or reissued. All documents so stamped shall also bear immediately under such seal, the date at which the certificate of registration expires. Any person who shall stamp or seal any document with such seal contrary to the provisions of this section or who shall knowingly place a false date of expiration under such seal, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than ten (\$10.00) dollars, nor more than one hundred (\$100.00) dollars.

Section 17. Nothing in this Act shall be construed as prohibiting a corporation, association, or partnership from engaging in the practice of professional engineering in this State, provided the person or persons connected with such corporation or partnership in responsible charge of the designing of supervision which constitutes such practice, is or are registered as herein required. (The same exemptions shall apply to corporations as apply to individuals).

Section 18. The following shall be exempt from the provisions of this Act.

(a) Any person not a resident of and having no established place of business in this State, practicing as a professional engineer therein, when such practice does not exceed in the aggregate thirty days in any calendar year; provided that said person is legally registered as a professional engineer in his own state or country, and has notified the secretary of his intention to practice in this manner.

(b) Any person not a resident of and having no established place of business in this State, practicing as a consulting associate of a registered professional engineer, engaged in professional engineering, when such practice

does not exceed in the aggregate thirty days in any calendar year.

(c) An employee of a registered engineer engaged in professional engineering, or an employee of a professional engineer exempted under this act.

(d) Officers and employees of the United States Government practicing

solely as such officers or employees.

(e) Officers and employees of this State or any subdivision thereof, practicing solely as such officers or employees, and who hold such office or are so employed at the date this Act becomes effective, during the remainder of

their term of office or employment.

Section 19. Any person, who after the thirty-first day of December, 1925, is not legally authorized to practice professional engineering in this State according to the provisions of this Act, and shall so practice or offer to practice in this State except he be exempted under this Act, and any person presenting or attempting to file as his own the certificate of registration of another, or who shall give false evidence of any kind to the Board, or to any member thereof, in obtaining a certificate of registration, or who shall falsely impersonate any other practitioner, of like or different name, or who shall use an expired or revoked certificate of registration, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall for each such offense of which he is convicted, be punished by a fine of not less than ten (\$10.00) dollars, nor more than two hundred (\$200.00) dollars, or by imprisonment for not to exceed three months or by both fine and imprisonment, and each day of such practice or attempt to practice, or use of an expired or revoked certificate of registration, shall constitute a separate offense.

Section 20. If any section or sections of this Act shall be declared uncon-

stitutional, or invalid, this shall not invalidate any other section.

Section 21. All laws or parts of laws in conflict with the provisions of this act be and the same are hereby repealed and this act shall be in force 90 days after its passage.

Approved: March 21, 1925.

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

To June 1, 1926

Branch of Engineering—Symbols: Civil Engineering, C. E.; Mechanical Engineering, M. E.; Electrical Engineering, E. E.; Mining Engineering, Min. E.; Chemical Engineering, Ch. E.; Architectural Engineering, Arch. E.

Certificate Number	NAME	Branch of Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
29 90 33	Allen, Frank R. Allen, G. Walter Allen, Thos. H.	C. E. C. E. M. E.	City Hall, Pine Bluff, Ark. Fed. Bldg. Batesville, Ark. 1430 Bk. of Com. Bldg., Mem- phis, Tenn.
24 85	Annen, A. F. Archer, E. T.	C. E. C. E.	City Hall Bldg., Hot Sprgs, Ark. 609-12 New England Bldg., Kansas City, Missouri.
218	Ayres, Willis E.	С. Е.	900 McCall Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
$121 \\ 6 \\ 41 \\ 20 \\ 8$	Badinelli, Eugene B. Bair, M. Z. Baker, J. C. Barry, W. T. Baxter, O. G.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	424½ Cherry St., Helena, Ark. 458 State Capitol Bldg., L. Rock 505 W. Vine St., Searcy, Ark. 215 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock. 1417-18 Donaghey Bldg., Little Rock.
79	Beckman, B. F.	C. E.	c/o F. S. & W. Ry., Ft. Smith, Ark.
60 181 159 144 38	Bearden, Luther Bell, F. L. Bell, William B. Bird, E. B. Black, E. B.	C. E. C. E. C. E. Min. E. C. E.	Lake Village, Ark. 106 W. Pleasure St., Searcy, Ark. Bridge Junction, Ark. 513 La. St., Little Rock 701 Mutual Bldg., Kansas City, Missouri.
18 75 219 183	Bond, Cyrus H. Bonewits, Everett E. Booker, Paul Robert Boyd, K. J.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Marion, Ark. Fed. Bldg., Batesville, Ark. 2500 Pecan St., Texarkana, Ark. 1700 W. Main St., Blytheville, Ark.
100	Bradford, Alfred Francis	C. E.	McGehee, Ark. c/o Mo. Pac.
195 91	Branting, Luther R. Brookfield, Benj. I.	Min. E. C. E.	R. R. Bauxite, Arkansas 113 E. Jackson Ave., Jonesboro,
185 152 69 123 22 58 127 35 190	Brougher, J. Irl Brown, Fred I. Brown, L. Carlton Buckley, Virgil B. Buford, Albert Walter Bush, Melvin D. Butterworth, A. C. Buxton, John E. Campbell, Robert A. Carter, Hugh R.	C. E. M. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. C. E. C. C. E. C.	Ark. P. O. Box 323, Harrison, Ark. c/o Ark. Foundry, Little Rock 722 N. 18th St., Ft. Smith, Ark. 229 Union Station, Little Rock Forrest City, Ark. 2510 Chester St., Little Rock. Foot of Ashley St., Little Rock. Marked Tree, Ark. Foot of Ashley St., Little Rock. 313 Exchange Bk. Bldg., Little Rock
178 111	Carter, Walter E. Chaney, A. B.	C. E. C. E.	Camden, Ark. Mo. Pac. R. R., Van Buren, Ark

-		1	
Number Certificate	NAME	Branch of Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
119	Christoper, Ben H. Jr.	C. E.	Ark. Light & Power Co., Pine
76	Christian, Charles Stephen	С. Е.	Bluff, Ark. 424-25 State National Bank Bldg., Texarkana, Ark.
129	Cobb, Guy W.	C. E.	Suite 18, Am. Trust Building Jonesboro, Ark.
$ \begin{array}{r} 34 \\ 133 \\ 56 \end{array} $	Cohen, S. J. Coker, Fred E. Collette, E. L.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	7 Arcade Bldg., Memphis, Tenn. P. O. Box 1796, Asheville, N.C. 100 Garrison Ave., Ft. Smith,
86	Combs, Walter	C. E.	Ark. 305 W. 11th St., Pine Bluff,
104	Congress Hongs N	C. E.	Ark. Court House, Little Rock
$ \begin{array}{c} 194 \\ 108 \\ 73 \end{array} $	Conway, Henry N. Cook, William Horace Crooks, William	C. E. C. E.	Foreman, Ark. 522 Home Insurance Bldg., Little Rock
140 43 114 98 161 62 19	Cushman, W. H. Cutler, Chas. L. Daugherty, D. H. Davies, S. G. Dawson, J. W. Dickinson, W. Dewoody Donathan, Grady D.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C.	P. O. Box 314, Marion, Ark. Harrison, Ark. 1212 Dennison St., Little Rock P. O. Box 382, Morrilton, Ark. 2208 Beech St., Texarkana, Ark. 610 Boyle Bldg., Little Rock Eby Engineering Co., El Dorado, Ark.
65	Dotson, Wm. C.	C. E.	A & N. Hospital, Hot Springs, Ark.
157 80	Douglass, E. P. Douglass, Glenn D.	C. E. C. E.	Court House, Marianna, Ark. 829 Home Insurance Bldg., Little Rock
116	Dove, F. J.	C. E.	625 Home Insurance Bldg., Little Rock
68	Dring, George S.	E. E.	705 Board of Education Bldg., St. Louis, Mo.
98	Eby, Samuel H.	C. E.	P. O. Box 1000, El Dorado, Ark.
93	Ellsworth, F. VP.	C. E.	808 Park Ave., Hot Springs, Ark.
47	Evans, Walter H.	C. E.	City Engineer's Office, Ft. Smith, Ark.
$\begin{array}{c} 200 \\ 179 \end{array}$	Fairley, Omer M. Farmer, I. W.	C. E. Min. E.	Osceola, Ark. 600 Keith & Perry Bldg., Kansas City, Mo.
70	Feild, W. Terry	M. E.	338-339 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock
151	Feltus, Richard Conner	C. E.	State Highway Dept., Jonesboro, Ark.
158	Flannery, Earl H.	C. E.	412 State Capitol Bldg., Little Rock
$\begin{array}{c} 15 \\ 221 \end{array}$	Ford, W. E. Fordyce, John Rison	C. E. M. E.	214 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock P. O. Box 346, Hot Springs, Ark.
104 171 148	Foster, G. T. Galt, Albert C. Garanflo, Geo E.	C. E. Ch. E. C. E.	City Hall, North Little Rock 344 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock 527 Home Insurance Bldg., Little Rock.
206 83	Garrett, James E. Garver, Neal B.	C. E. C. E.	324 S.5th Ave., Paragould, Ark. 332 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock

-	1	1	1
ate er		h of ering	
Certificate Number	NAME	Branch of Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
186 172 3	Gauss, O. W. Gibb, Frank W. Gladson, W. N.	C. E. Arch.E. E. E.	Osceola, Ark. 227 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock University of Ark., Fayette- ville, Ark.
122	Gower, Llewellyn David	Min. E.	Jewel Coal Mining Co., Paris,
101 61	Gray, Walter T. Greenlee, T. L.	C. E. C. E.	Hotel Revilo, Little Rock 812 W. 22nd Ave., Pine Bluff, Ark.
$\begin{array}{c} 16 \\ 48 \\ 102 \end{array}$	Guest, John Henry Hale, Elson Hall, R. V.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	City Hall, El Dorado, Ark. P. O. Box 636, Pine Bluff, Ark. 424 State National Bank. Bldg. Texarkana, Ark.
$\begin{array}{c} 224 \\ 207 \end{array}$	Hampton, E. G. Hanley, W. S.	C. E. C. E.	Fordyce, Ark. General Office, St. L. S. W. Ry.
220	Hansen, Paul	C. E.	Co., Tyler, Texas N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill.
$27 \\ 175 \\ 214$	Hardy, J. W. Hargett, Fred L. Harman, Jacob A.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	c/o Elks Club, Ft Smith, Ark. Russellville, Ark. 807 McCall Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
164	Haynes, John Willard	C. E.	W. Washington St., Camden, Ark.
143 142 46 147 4 139 37 44 87	Heagler, Arthur E. Heagler, Wirt R. Hemphill, O. L. Henry, L. A. Herring, Fred J. Hewitt, J. H. Hiatt, A. R. Hicks, Walter E. Hidinger, L. L.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Bertig Bldg., Paragould, Ark. Bertig Bldg., Paragould, Ark. State H-way Dept., Little Rock 318 Union Station, Little Rock Fed. Bldg., Jonesboro, Ark. 515 Spruce St., Little Rock P. O. Box 273, Eudora, Ark. P. O. Bldg., Harrison, Ark. 622 Goodwyn Institute Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
209 82	Hill, Macon F. Hillyer, Orley J.	C. E. C. E.	Camden, Ark. Mo. Valley Bridge & Iron Co.,
126 204 78 32	Hodgins, Wm. B. Hogg, Wm. L. Holderbaum, Chas. W. Howe, Harry N.	C. E. Min E. C. E. C. E.	Leavenworth, Kansas. Walnut Ridge, Ark. Batesville, Ark. 1521 W. 21st St., Little Rock 74 Porter Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
94 31 42	Hudgins, F. D. Humphreys, F. A. Irwin, J. C., Jr.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	322-23 Boyle Bldg., Little Rock P. O. Box 1045, Asheville, N. C. 312 Merchants Bank Bldg., Ft. Smith, Ark.
$ \begin{array}{r} 197 \\ 163 \\ 72 \\ 201 \end{array} $	Jessup, Clifford Kern, Robert A. Kirk, Frank P. Knoch, Elmo Albert	Min. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Bauxite, Ark. 412 State Capitol, Little Rock 122 N. 18th St., Ft. Smith, Ark. Ark. Central Power Co., Little
107	Knott, Virgil P.	C. E.	Rock 407 Home Insurance Bldg., Little Rock
202 81	Kolb, Chester Kuykendall, Roy	C. E. C. E.	P. O. Box 107, McGehee, Ark. 207 W. Markham St., Little Rock

d)		5	
Certificate Number	NAME	Branch of Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
71	Kuykendall, Sam J.	С. Е.	Dixie Culvert Mfg. Co., Little
25	Lambert, Carl F.	C. E.	Rock 402 Interstate Bldg., Kansas City, Mo.
$\begin{array}{c} 150 \\ 53 \end{array}$	Lander, Roswell Sears Lawrence, J. G.	C. E. C. E.	P. O. Box 196, Little Rock 338-339 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock
130	Lee, Shelley H.	С. Е.	American Trust Bldg., Jonesboro, Ark.
66 188 192	Lawrence, M. R. Lefever, K. W. Lewis, Harrison Olney	C. E. C. E. C. E.	123 W. 2d St., Little Rock 214 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock 715 1st National Bank. Bldg.,
55	Liggett, William Edwin	E. E.	Ft. Smith, Ark. 305 Hollenberg Bldg., Little Rock
136 49 198	Likins, Roy D. Limerick, Aylett Buckner Limerick, R. C.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	P. O. Box 136, Russellville, Ark. Forrest City, Ark. State Highway Dept., State Capitol, Little Rock
189	Livingston, Harold Todd	C. E.	C. R. I. & P. Ry., General
57	Long, V. V.	C. E.	Office, Little Rock 1300 Colcord Bldg., Oklahoma City, Okla.
7	Lund, Alfred M	C. E.	527 Home Insurance Bldg.,
182	Luten, Daniel B.	C. E.	Little Rock 1056 Consolidated Bldg.,
14 12 59	MacCrea, Don A. Madding, Albert S. Marvin, Phillip Edward	C. E. C. E. C. E.	Indianapolis, Ind. 214 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock City Hall, Biloxi, Miss. 616 Home Ins. Bldg., Little Rock
191 203	Mashburn, Ernest E. Mayfield, Wm. R.	C. E. C. E.	Batesville, Ark. Highway Dept., Capitol Bldg.
166 165 211 199 9	Mayne, Joseph F. McCurdy, John F. McCurry, John A. McDowell, William Mills McKennon, B. C.	C. E. C. E. Min. E C.E. C. E.	Little Rock Mo. Pac. R. R., Wynne, Ark. 1610 Main St., Pine Bluff, Ark. P.O. Box 228, Russellville, Ark. P. O. Box 512 Pine Bluff, Ark 1011 City Bank Bldg., Shreve-
45	Mercer, Lester H.	C. E.	port, La. E. 126 Ninth Ave. N., St.
99	Miller, Garner W.	C. E.	Petersburg, Fla. 900 McCall Bldg., Memphis,
52 146 180	Mitchell, William W. Montgomery, Geo. D. Moody, W. F.	C. E. C. E. E. E.	Tenn. 13 N. 7th St., Ft. Smith, Ark. R. F. D. No. 2, Cortland, Miss. 612-13 A. O. U. W. Bldg., Little Rock
210	Moreland, H. S.	C. E.	625 Central Ave., Hot Springs,
149	Morrison, Dwight W.	С. Е.	Ark. 337 S. Wild Olive St., Daytona Beech, Fla.
$ \begin{array}{r} 106 \\ 89 \\ 155 \\ 115 \\ 124 \end{array} $	Morrow, Franklin H. Morrow, Walter Thomson Moseley, J. S. Neely, F. H. Nelson, William E.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. E. E.	201 Court House, Newport, Ark. 332 Gazette Bldg., Little Rock Ark. Foundry Co., Little Rock P. O. Box 219, Pine Bluff, Ark. 105 Hollenberg Bldg., Little Rock
	· ·	21	

21

Certificate Number	NAME	Branch of Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
110 92 217	Newsom, W. S. Nunn, Henry E. Okey, Chas. W.	C. E. C. E. C. E.	Wynne, Ark. 409 Main St., Van Buren, Ark. 807 McCall Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
176	O'Shea, Will D.	C. E.	601 South 12th St., Ft. Smith, Ark.
26	Parkes, William J.	C. E.	202-203 Citizens Bank Bldg., Pine Bluff, Ark.
113 168	Parse, M. W. Payne, Geo. William	C. E. C. E.	P. O. Box 216, Batesville, Ark. 1089 Railway Exchange Bldg., St. Louis, Mo.
138	Peacock, Chalmers J.	C. E.	Highway Dept., Capitol Bldg., Little Rock
174	Peay, Geo. H. L.	C.E.	Highway Dept., Capitol Bldg., Little Rock
50	Peck, H. S.	C. E.	611 Mchts. National Bank. Bldg., Ft. Smith, Ark.
95	Petersen, Ed. Frederick	C. E.	State National Bank Bldg., Texarkana, Ark.
162 154 216 105 97 118	Pharr, Harry Nelson Powell, John M. Pride, Joe P. Pritchett, F. A. Pye, W. D. Ratliff, E. M.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Bridge Junction, Ark. 1500 E. 6th St., Little Rock R. R. No. 3, Blythville, Ark. 310 Riegler Bldg., Little Rock 305 Hollenb'g Bldg., Little Rock 20 E. Center St., Fayetteville, Ark.
120 51 67 2 5 128 64	Reynolds, E. B. Rhinehart, Robert J. Rhule, W. L. Rhyne, Jas. R. Rice, Jas. H. Rohrer, W. E. Rose, Clarence R.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. Min. E. E. E.	Court House, Pine Bluff, Ark. 206 Broadway, Little Rock 123 W. 2nd St., Little Rock Corning, Ark. 902 Marshall St., Little Rock Huntington, Ark. Ark. Cold Storage Co., Little
196 88	Rucker, William A., Sr. Sayford, Ned H.	M. E. C. E.	Rock Bauxite, Ark. 622 Goodwyn Institute Bldg., Memphis, Tenn.
177 96 30 11 141	Schellhous, Harry E. Selle, Willard A. Sellers, H. C. Shankland, Charles B. Shurgar, W. G.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Court House, Forrest City, Ark. 1115 E. 2nd St., Little Rock P. O. Box 572, Harrison, Ark. Trenton, Tenn. Power Plant, Garland & Arch Sts., Little Rock
187 36 23 54	Simmins, H. C. Simons, P. T. Smith, Cleveland Smith, Guy B.	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	323 Boyle Bldg., Little Rock McGehee, Ark. City Hall, Hot Springs, Ark. 410 Citizens Bank Bldg., Pine
145	Smith, R. M.	С. Е.	Bluff, Ark. 1603 Cherry St., Van Buren, Ark.
169	Smith, William Carl	C. E.	227 N. Locust St., Fayetteville, Ark.
131	Spencer, W. R.	C. E.	University of Ark., Fayetteville, Ark.
$\begin{array}{c} 21 \\ 135 \end{array}$	Stockard, R. L. Stokes, G. N.	C. E. C. E.	P.O.Box 209, Forrest City, Ark. Dermott, Ark.

Certificate Number	NAME	Engineering	MAILING ADDRESS
170 10 222 173	Stricklin R. E. L. Swilley, Geo W. Sykes, G. Hunter Tayman, Nelson Grant	C. E. C. E. C. E.	Paragould, Ark. P.O.Box 743, El Dorado, Ark. Marion Hotel, Little Rock 1101 La. Nat'l Bank Bldg., Baton Rouge, La.
213 184 160 117	Thomas, Charles O. Tucker, Wm. M. Turner, Webster F. Vance, William Herbert	C. E. C. E. C. E. C. E.	Benton, Ark. P.O.Box 304, Jonesboro, Ark. P.O.Box 111, Russellville, Ark. 1055 Railway Exchange Bldg., St. Louis, Mo.
137	Van Hovenberg, H. W.	C. E.	213½ Pine St., Texarkana, Texas
77 39	Vaught, Walter Augustus Veatch, N. T. Jr.	C. E. C. E.	Corning, Ark. 701 Mutual Bldg., Kansas City, Missouri
$63 \\ 205 \\ 84$	Warden, Roy E. Watkins, Guy A. Watters, J. T. Welch, R. E.	C. E. C. E. C. E. Min. E.	229 Union Station, Little Rock 610 Boyle Bldg., Little Rock Bauxite, Ark. 715 1st National Bank. Bldg.,
193	Wheeler, Carnall	C. E.	Ft. Smith, Ark. 212 Kennedy Bldg., Ft. Smith, Ark.
134 132 109 125 167 40	White, Leonard N. Whitthorne, S. W. Williams, R. E. Williams, Rector L. Wilson, B. G. Wilson, Charles R.	C. E. C. E. M. E. C. E. C. E.	610 Boyle Bldg., Little Rock Arkansas City, Ark. Home Ins. Bldg., Little Rock 1301 La. St., Little Rock 604 Clifton St., Conway, Ark. P.O.Box 563, Arkansas City, Ark.
28	Winters, Winston Lee	C. E.	311-312 Merchants National
208 112 103	Woodlief, W. C. Wright, Chris L. Wright, Harry M.	M. E. C. E. C. E.	Bank Bldg., Ft. Smith, Ark. 239 Hall Bldg., Little Rock 721 N. Spruce St., Little Rock 331 N. Orange St., Sarasota, Fla.
74	Yerby, Harold V.	C. E.	100 Garrison Ave., Ft. Smith Ark.